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be effective upon service, unless other-
wise provided therein, or stayed pursu-
ant to § 501.120. 

(c) Service. OFE will serve a copy of 
the Fuel Use Order upon any person 
who was served a copy of the notice of 
violation and upon all parties to any 
public proceeding on the notice of vio-
lation. OFE will place a copy of each 
final order on file in the Public Infor-
mation Office described in § 501.12. 

(d) Judicial review. Any person against 
whom a penalty is assessed pursuant to 
§ 501.167(b) after a hearing before an 
ALJ may, within sixty (60) calendar 
days after the date of issuance of the 
order assessing such penalty, institute 
an action in the United States Court of 
Appeals for the appropriate judicial 
circuit for judicial review of such order 
in accordance with the provisions of 
section 723 of FUA. 

Subpart L—Investigations, Viola-
tions, Sanctions and Judicial 
Actions 

§ 501.180 Investigations. 
(a) General. Pursuant to section 711 of 

FUA, the DEOA, and in accordance 
with the provisions of 10 CFR 205.201, 
OFE may initiate and conduct inves-
tigations relating to the scope, nature, 
and extent of compliance by any person 
with the rules, regulations, and orders 
issued by OFE under the authority of 
the Act, or any order or decree of court 
relating thereto, or any other agency 
action. When the circumstances war-
rant, OFE may issue subpoenas as pro-
vided in subpart D of this part. OFE 
may also conduct investigative con-
ferences in conjunction with any inves-
tigation. 

(b) Any duly authorized representa-
tive of OFE has the authority to con-
duct an investigation and to take such 
action as he deems necessary and ap-
propriate to the conduct of the inves-
tigation. 

(c) Notification. If any person is re-
quired to furnish information or docu-
mentary evidence pursuant to a sub-
poena or special report order, OFE will, 
upon written request, inform that per-
son as to the general purposes of the 
investigation. 

(d) Confidentiality. OFE shall not dis-
close any information received during 

an investigation under this section, in-
cluding the identities of the person in-
vestigated and any other person who 
provides information, to the extent it 
is exempt from public disclosure pursu-
ant to 5 U.S.C. 552 and 10 CFR part 1004. 

§ 501.181 Sanctions. 

(a) General. (1) A violation of any pro-
vision of the Act (other than section 
402 of FUA), or any rule or order there-
under shall be subject to the penalties 
and sanctions provided in subtitle C of 
title VII of FUA. 

(2) Each day that any provision of 
the Act (other than section 402), or any 
rule or order thereunder is violated 
constitutes a separate violation within 
the meaning of the provisions of this 
section relating to civil penalties. 

(b) Criminal penalties. Any person who 
willfully violates any provision of the 
Act (other than section 402), or any 
rule or order thereunder will be subject 
to a fine of not more than $50,000, or to 
imprisonment for not more than 1 
year, or both, for each violation. 

(c) Civil penalties. (1) Any person who 
violates any provisions of the Act 
(other than section 402) or any rule or 
order thereunder will be subject to the 
following civil penalty, which may not 
exceed $27,500 for each violation: Any 
person who operates a powerplant or 
major fuel burning installation under 
an exemption, during any 12-calendar- 
month period, in excess of that author-
ized in such exemption will be assessed 
a civil penalty of up to $3.30 for each 
MCF of natural gas or up to $11 for 
each barrel of oil used in excess of that 
authorized in the exemption. 

(2) OFE may compromise and settle, 
and collect civil penalties whenever it 
considers it to be appropriate or advis-
able. 

(d) Corporate personnel. (1) If a direc-
tor, officer, or agent of a corporation 
willfully authorizes, orders, or per-
forms any act or practice constituting 
in whole or in part a violation of the 
Act, or any rule or order thereunder, he 
will be subject to the penalties speci-
fied in paragraphs (b) and (c) of this 
section without regard to any penalties 
to which the corporation may be sub-
ject. He will not, however, be subject to 
imprisonment under paragraph (b) of 
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this section unless he knew of non-
compliance by the corporation, or had 
received from OFE notice of non-
compliance by the corporation. 

(2) Purposes of this paragraph: 
(i) Agent includes any employee or 

other person acting on behalf of the 
corporation on either a temporary or 
permanent basis; and 

(ii) Notice of noncompliance is a final 
Fuel Use Order issued under § 501.167 of 
this part. 

[46 FR 59889, Dec. 7, 1981, as amended at 62 
FR 46183, Sept. 2, 1997] 

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 74 FR 66032, Dec. 
14 2009, § 501.181 was amended by revising 
paragraph (c)(1), effective January 13, 2010. 
For the convenience of the user, the revised 
text is set forth as follows: 

§ 501.181 Sanctions. 

* * * * * 

(c) Civil Penalties. (1) Any person who vio-
lates any provisions of the Act (other than 
section 402) or any rule or order thereunder 
will be subject to the following civil penalty, 
which may not exceed $40,000 for each viola-
tion: Any person who operates a powerplant 
or major fuel burning installation under an 
exemption, during any 12-calendar-month pe-
riod, in excess of that authorized in such ex-
emption will be assessed a civil penalty of up 
to $3.30 for each MCF of natural gas or up to 
$20 for each barrel of oil used in excess of 
that authorized in the exemption. 

* * * * * 

§ 501.182 Injunctions. 
Whenever it appears to OFE that any 

person has committed, is committing, 
or is about to commit a violation of 
any provision of the Act, or any rule or 
order thereunder, OFE may, in accord-
ance with section 724 of FUA, bring a 
civil action in the appropriate United 
States District Court to enjoin such 
acts or practices. The relief sought 
may include a mandatory injunction 
commanding any person to comply 
with any provision of such provision, 
order or rule, the violation of which is 
prohibited by section 724 of FUA and 
may also include interim equitable re-
lief. 

§ 501.183 Citizen suits. 
(a) General. A person who believes he 

is aggrieved by the failure of OFE to 

perform any nondiscretionary act of 
duty under the Act may file a Petition 
for Action for OFE to take such action 
as he may feel to be proper. This peti-
tion must be filed at the address pro-
vided in § 501.11. The petition must 
specify the action requested and set 
forth the facts and legal arguments 
that constitute the basis for the re-
quest. The filing of a Petition for Ac-
tion will serve as notice to OFE under 
FUA section 725(b) for purposes of any 
citizens suit that may be subsequently 
filed. 

(b) OFE decision. Within sixty (60) 
days of receiving the Petition for Ac-
tion, OFE will notify the person giving 
notice under this section that it has in-
stituted the action requested or that 
other described action is being taken, 
or that other described action is being 
taken, or that no action is being taken 
and the reasons therefor. 

Subpart M—Use of Natural Gas or 
Petroleum for Emergency and 
Unanticipated Equipment 
Outage Purposes 

§ 501.190 Purpose and scope. 
(a) If a person operates a powerplant 

covered by any of the prohibitions of 
titles II, III, or IV of FUA, § 501.191 of 
this subpart establishes procedures to 
be followed for the use of minimum 
amounts of natural gas or petroleum 
under FUA section 103(a)(15)(B) in 
order to alleviate or prevent unantici-
pated equipment outages and emer-
gencies directly affecting the public 
health, safety, or welfare that would 
result from electric power outages. 

(b) Explanatory note: If a person oper-
ates a rental boiler as a powerplant 
covered by any of the prohibitions of 
titles II, III, or IV of FUA, he may be 
able to use the provisions of this sub-
part for the emergency use of natural 
gas or petroleum. 

[54 FR 52893, Dec. 22, 1989] 

§ 501.191 Use of natural gas or petro-
leum for certain unanticipated 
equipment outages and emer-
gencies defined in section 
103(a)(15)(B) of the act. 

(a) In the event of the occurrence or 
imminent occurrence of an emergency, 
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